

## **Oklahoma Health Care Authority**

It is very important that you provide your comments regarding the proposed rule change by the comment due date. Comments are directed to the [Oklahoma Health Care Authority \(OHCA\) Proposed Changes Blog](#).

**OHCA COMMENT DUE DATE:** February 17, 2017

The proposed policy is a Permanent Rule. The proposed policy was presented at the January 3, 2017 Tribal Consultation and is scheduled to be presented to the Medical Advisory Committee on March 9, 2017 and the OHCA Board of Directors on March 23, 2017.

**Reference: APA WF 16-31B**

### **SUMMARY:**

**Long Term Care Policy Revisions** – The Proposed Long Term Care policy revisions update rules to remove references to outdated terminology and other general clean-up of terms as appropriate.

### **LEGAL AUTHORITY**

The Oklahoma Health Care Authority Board; The Oklahoma Health Care Authority Act, Section 5003 through 5016 of Title 63 of Oklahoma Statutes; 42 CFR Part 483 Subpart C

### **RULE IMPACT STATEMENT:**

#### **STATE OF OKLAHOMA OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY**

**TO:** Tywanda Cox  
Federal and State Policy

**From:** Likita Gunn  
Federal and State Authorities

**SUBJECT:** Rule Impact Statement  
APA WF # 16-31B

#### **A. Brief description of the purpose of the rule:**

The proposed revisions to the Long Term Care policy updates terminology to correctly identify individuals residing in long term care facilities as those with intellectual disabilities and replaces the term patient with member as appropriate.

- B. A description of the classes of persons who most likely will be affected by the proposed rule, including classes that will bear the cost of the proposed rule, and any information on cost impacts received by the agency from any private or public entities:

No classes of persons will be affected by the proposed rule as the changes to policy are only to align rules with current terminology used for individuals with intellectual disabilities.

- C. A description of the classes of persons who will benefit from the proposed rule:

No classes of persons will benefit from the proposed rule.

- D. A description of the probable economic impact of the proposed rule upon the affected classes of persons or political subdivisions, including a listing of all fee changes and, whenever possible, a separate justification for each fee change:

The proposed rule should have no economic impact and no fee changes, as the proposed rule change should only require a change in business practice for providers.

- E. The probable costs and benefits to the agency and to any other agency of the implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule, the source of revenue to be used for implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule, and any anticipated affect on state revenues, including a projected net loss or gain in such revenues if it can be projected by the agency:

Agency staff has determined that the proposed rule is budget neutral.

- F. A determination of whether implementation of the proposed rule will have an economic impact on any political subdivisions or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule:

The proposed rule will not have an economic impact on any political subdivision or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule.

- G. A determination of whether implementation of the proposed rule

will have an adverse effect on small business as provided by the Oklahoma Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act:

The proposed rule will not have an adverse effect on small businesses as provided by the Oklahoma Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act.

- H. An explanation of the measures the agency has taken to minimize compliance costs and a determination of whether there are less costly or nonregulatory methods or less intrusive methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule:

There are no other legal methods to minimize compliance costs.

- I. A determination of the effect of the proposed rule on the public health, safety and environment and, if the proposed rule is designed to reduce significant risks to the public health, safety and environment, an explanation of the nature of the risk and to what extent the proposed rule will reduce the risk:

The agency has taken measures to determine that there is no less costly or non-regulatory method or less intrusive method for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule. Opportunities for public input are provided throughout the rulemaking process, in addition to formal public comment periods and tribal consultations.

- J. A determination of any detrimental effect on the public health, safety and environment if the proposed rule is not implemented:

OHCA does not believe there is a detrimental effect on the public health and safety if the rule is not passed.

- K. The date the rule impact statement was prepared and if modified, the date modified:

This rule impact statement was prepared on December 8, 2016.

#### **RULE TEXT**

### **TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY CHAPTER 35. MEDICAL ASSISTANCE FOR ADULTS AND CHILDREN- ELIGIBILITY**

### **SUBCHAPTER 9. ICF/IID, HCBW/IID, AND INDIVIDUALS AGE 65 OR OLDER IN MENTAL HEALTH HOSPITALS**

#### **PART 1. SERVICES**

**317:35-9-4. Services in Intermediate Care Facility for persons with ~~Mental Retardation~~ Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (public and private)**

(a) Services in a private Intermediate Care Facility for persons with ~~Mental Retardation~~ (ICF/MR) individuals with Intellectual Disabilities (ICF/IID) may be provided to members requiring health or habilitative services above the level of room and board. Services are provided to members who meet level of care and eligibility requirements per OAC 317:30-5-122 and 317:35-9-45.

(b) Services in a public ~~ICF/MR~~ ICF/IID may be provided to members who require health or habilitative services above the level of room and board. Services are provided to members who meet level of care requirements per OAC 317:30-5-122.

**PART 5. DETERMINATION OF MEDICAL ELIGIBILITY FOR ICF/IID, HCBW/IID, AND INDIVIDUALS AGE 65 OR OLDER IN MENTAL HEALTH HOSPITALS**

**317:35-9-45. Determination of medical eligibility for care in a private Intermediate Care Facility for ~~Persons with Mental Retardation~~ Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities**

(a) **Pre-approval of medical eligibility.** Pre-approval of medical eligibility for private ~~ICF/MR~~ ICF/IID care is based on level of care requirements per OAC 317:30-5-122. Pre-approval is not necessary for individuals with a severe or profound intellectual disability. Pre-approval is made by Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) Level of Care Evaluation Unit (LOCEU) analysts.

(b) **Application for ~~ICF/MR~~ ICF/IID services.** Within 30 calendar days after services begin, the facility must submit:

(1) ~~the~~ The original of the ~~ICF/MR~~ ICF/IID Level of Care Assessment form (LTC-300) to LOCEU. Required attachments include:

(A) Current (within 90 days of requested approval date) medical information signed by a physician.

(B) A current (within 12 months of requested approval date) psychological evaluation by a licensed Psychologist or State staff supervised by a licensed Psychologist. The evaluation must include intelligence testing that yields a full-scale intelligence quotient, a full-scale functional or adaptive assessment, as well as the age of onset.

(C) A copy of the pertinent section of the Individual Plan or other appropriate documentation relative to the ~~ICF/MR~~ ICF/IID admission and the need for ~~ICF/MR~~ ICF/IID level of care.

(D) A statement that the member is not an imminent threat

of harm to self or others (i.e., suicidal or homicidal).

(2) If pre-approval was determined by LOCEU and the above information is received, medical approval will be entered on an electronic medical case list known as MEDATS. Pre-approval is not needed for individuals with a severe or profound intellectual disability.

(c) **Categorical relationship.** Categorical relationship must be established for determination of eligibility for long-term medical care. If categorical relationship has not already been established, the proper forms and medical information are submitted to LOCEU. (Refer to OAC 317:35-5-4). In such instances LOCEU will render a decision on categorical relationship using the same definition as used by ~~the~~withthe SSA. A follow-up is required by the OKDHS social worker with the SSA to be sure that their disability decision agrees with the decision of LOCEU.

(d) **Medical eligibility for ~~ICF/MR~~ICF/IID services.**

(1) Individuals must require active treatment per 42 CFR 483.440.

(2) Individuals must have a diagnosis of intellectual disability or a related condition based on level of care requirements per OAC 317:30-5-122 and results of a current comprehensive psychological evaluation by a licensed Psychologist or State staff supervised by a licensed Psychologist.

(A) Per the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders, intellectual disability is a condition characterized by a significantly sub-average general intellectual functioning existing concurrently with deficits in adaptive behavior and originating before 18 years of age.

(B) Per 42 CFR 435.1010, persons with related conditions means individuals who have a severe, chronic disability that meets the following conditions:

(i) It is attributable to cerebral palsy or epilepsy;  
~~or.~~

(ii) ~~it~~It is attributable to any other condition, other than mental illness, found to be closely related to intellectual disability because this condition results in impairment of general intellectual functioning or adaptive behavior similar to that of persons with intellectual disability and requires treatment or services similar to those required for these persons.

(iii) It is manifested before the person reaches age 22.

(iv) It is likely to continue indefinitely.

(v) It results in substantial functional limitations in three or more areas of major life activity per OAC

317:30-5-122.

(C) Conditions closely related to intellectual disability include, but are not limited to the following:

- (i) autism or autistic disorder, childhood disintegrative disorder, Rett syndrome and pervasive developmental disorder, not otherwise specified (only if "typical autism");
- (ii) severe brain injury (acquired brain injury, traumatic brain injury, stroke, anoxia, meningitis);
- (iii) fetal alcohol syndrome;
- (iv) chromosomal disorders (Down syndrome, fragile x syndrome, Prader-Willi syndrome); and
- (v) other genetic disorders (Williams syndrome, spina bifida, phenylketonuria).

(D) The following diagnoses do not qualify as conditions related to intellectual disability. Nevertheless, a person with any of these conditions is not disqualified if there is a simultaneous occurrence of a qualifying condition:

- (i) learning disability;
- (ii) behavior or conduct disorders;
- (iii) substance abuse;
- (iv) hearing impairment or vision impairment;
- (v) mental illness that includes psychotic disorders, adjustment disorders, reactive attachment disorders, impulse control disorders, and paraphilias;
- (vi) borderline intellectual functioning, developmental disability that does not result in an intellectual impairment, developmental delay or "at risk" designations;
- (vii) physical problems (such as multiple sclerosis, muscular dystrophy, spinal cord injuries and amputations);
- (viii) medical health problems (such as cancer, acquired immune deficiency syndrome and terminal illnesses);
- (ix) milder autism spectrum disorders (such as Asperger's disorder and pervasive developmental disorder not otherwise specified if not "atypical autism");
- (x) neurological problems not associated with intellectual deficits (such as Tourette's syndrome, fetal alcohol effects and non-verbal learning disability); or
- (xi) mild traumatic brain injury (such as minimal brain injury and post-concussion syndrome).

## **SUBCHAPTER 19. NURSING FACILITY SERVICES**

### **317:35-19-8. Pre-admission screening and resident review**

(a) Federal ~~Regulations~~ regulations govern the State's responsibility for Preadmission Screening and Resident Review (PASRR) of individuals with mental illness and intellectual disabilities. PASRR applies to the screening or reviewing of all individuals for mental illness or intellectual disability or related conditions who apply to or reside in Medicaid certified nursing facilities regardless of the source of payment for the nursing facility (NF) services and regardless of the individual's or resident's known diagnoses. The NF must independently evaluate the Level I PASRR Screen regardless of who completes the form and determine whether or not to admit an individual to the facility. If an individual is admitted ~~to the NF~~ inappropriately, the NF is subject to recoupment of Medicaid funds and penalties imposed by CMS. Federal financial participation (FFP) may not be paid until results of any needed PASRR Level II evaluations are received. PASRR is a requirement for nursing facilities with dually certified (both Medicare and Medicaid) beds. There are no PASRR requirements for Medicare skilled beds that are not dually certified, nor is PASRR required for individuals seeking residency in an intermediate care facility for the ~~mentally retarded (ICF/MR)~~ individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICF/IID).

(b) For Medicaid applicants, medical and financial eligibility determinations are also required.

### **317:35-19-9. PASRR screening process**

#### **(a) Level I screen for PASRR.**

(1) OHCA Form LTC-300R, Nursing Facility Level of Care Assessment, must be completed by an authorized NF official or designee. An authorized NF official or designee must consist of one of the following:

- (A) The ~~nursing facility~~ NF administrator or co-administrator;
- (B) A licensed nurse, social service director, or social worker from the ~~nursing facility~~; or
- (C) A licensed nurse, social service director, or social worker from the hospital.

(2) Prior to admission, the authorized NF official must evaluate the properly completed OHCA Form LTC-300R and the Minimum Data Set (MDS), if available, as well as all other readily available medical and social information, to determine if there currently exists any indication of mental illness (MI), intellectual disability (ID), or other related condition, or if such condition existed in the applicant's past history. Form LTC-300R constitutes the Level I PASRR

Screen and is utilized in determining whether or not a Level II is necessary prior to allowing the patientmember to be admitted.

(3) The ~~nursing facility~~NF is responsible for determining from the evaluation whether or not the patientmember can be admitted to the facility. A "yes" response to any question from Form LTC-300R, Section E, will require the ~~nursing facility~~NF to contact the Level of Care Evaluation Unit (LOCEU) for a consultation to determine if a Level II assessment is needed. The ~~NF~~facility is also responsible for consulting with the LOCEU regarding any ~~MI/ID-related~~mental illness, intellectual disability, or related condition information that becomes known either from completion of the MDS or throughout the resident's stay. The original Form LTC-300R must be submitted to the LOCEU by mail within 10 days of the resident's admission. SoonerCare payment may not be made for a resident whose LTC-300R requirements have not been satisfied in a timely manner.

(4) Upon receipt and review of the PASRR eligibility information packet, the LOCEU may, in coordination with the Oklahoma Department of Human Services (OKHDS) area nurse, re-evaluate whether a Level II PASRR assessment may be required. If a Level II assessment is not required, as determined by the LOCEU, the area nurse, or nurse designee, documents this and continues with the process of determining medical eligibility. If a Level II is required, a medical decision is not made until the area nurse is notified of the outcome of the Level II assessment. The results of the Level II assessment are considered in the medical eligibility decision. The area nurse, or nurse designee, makes the medical eligibility decision within ten working days of receipt of the medical information when a Level II assessment is not required. If a Level II assessment is required, the area nurse makes the decision within five working days if appropriate.

**(b) Pre-admission Level II assessment for PASRR.** The authorized official is responsible for consulting with the OHCA LOCEU in determining whether a Level II assessment is necessary. The decision for Level II assessment is made by the LOCEU.

(1) Any one of the following three (3) circumstances will allow a patientmember to enter the ~~nursing facility~~NF without being subjected to a Level II PASRR assessment:

(A) The patientmember has no current indication of mental illness or an intellectual disability or other related condition and there is no history of such condition in the patient'smember's past;



(B) The ~~patient~~member does not have a diagnosis of an intellectual disability or related condition; or

(C) The ~~patient~~member has indications of mental illness or an intellectual disability or other related condition, but is not a danger to self and/or others, and is being released from an acute care hospital as part of a medically prescribed period of recovery (Exempted Hospital Discharge). If an individual is admitted to an NF based on Exempted Hospital Discharge, it is the responsibility of the NF to ensure that the individual is either discharged by the 30th day or that a Level II has been requested and is in process. Exempted Hospital Discharge is allowed only if all of the following three (3) conditions are met:

(i) The individual must be admitted to the NF directly from a hospital after receiving acute inpatient care at the hospital (not including psychiatric facilities);

(ii) The individual must require NF services for the condition for which he/she received care in the hospital; and

(iii) The attending physician must certify before admission to the facility that the individual is likely to require less than ~~30~~thirty (30) days of nursing facility services. The ~~nursing facility~~NF will be required to furnish documentation to the OHCA upon request.

(2) If the ~~patient~~member has current indications of mental illness or an intellectual disability or other related condition, or if there is a history of such condition in the ~~patient's~~member's past, the ~~patient~~member cannot be admitted to the ~~nursing facility~~NF until the LOCEU is contacted to determine if a Level II PASRR assessment must be performed. Results of any Level II PASRR assessment ordered must indicate that ~~nursing facility~~NF care is appropriate prior to allowing the ~~patient~~member to be admitted.

(3) The OHCA Level of Care Evaluation Unit authorizes Advance Group Determinations for the MI and ~~MR~~ID Authorities in the categories listed in the following categories listed in (A) through (C) of this paragraph. Preliminary screening by the LOCEU should indicate eligibility for ~~nursing facility~~NF level of care prior to consideration of the provisional admission.

(A) **Provisional admission in cases of delirium.** Any person with mental illness, an intellectual disability or related condition who is not a danger to self and/or others, may be admitted to a ~~Medicaid~~Title XIX certified NF if the individual is experiencing a condition that precludes screening, i.e., effects of anesthesia, medication,

unfamiliar environment, severity of illness, or electrolyte imbalance.

(i) A Level II evaluation is completed immediately after the delirium clears. LOCEU must be provided with written documentation by a physician that supports the individual's condition which allows provisional admission as defined in (i) of this subparagraph.

(ii) Payment for NF services will not be made after the provisional admission ending date. If an individual is determined to need a longer stay, the individual must receive a Level II evaluation before continuation of the stay may be permitted and payment made for days beyond the ending date.

**(B) Provisional admission in emergency situations.** Any person with a mental illness, an intellectual disability or related condition, who is not a danger to self and/or others, may be admitted to a ~~Medicaid~~Title XIX certified ~~nursing facility~~NF for a period not to exceed seven days pending further assessment in emergency situations requiring protective services. The request for Level II evaluation must be made immediately upon admission to the NF if a longer stay is anticipated. LOCEU must be provided with written documentation from Adult Protective Services or the ~~nursing facility~~ which supports the individual's emergency admission. Payment for NF services will not be made beyond the emergency admission ending date.

**(C) Respite care admission.** Any person with mental illness, an intellectual disability or related condition, who is not a danger to self and/or others, may be admitted to a ~~Medicaid~~Title XIX certified ~~nursing facility~~NF to provide respite to in-home caregivers to whom the individual is expected to return following the brief NF stay. Respite care may be granted up to ~~15~~fifteen (15) consecutive days per stay, not to exceed ~~30~~thirty (30) days per calendar year.

(i) In rare instances, such as illness of the caregiver, an exception may be granted to allow ~~30~~thirty (30) consecutive days of respite care. However, in no instance can respite care exceed ~~30~~thirty (30) days per calendar year.

(ii) Respite care must be approved by LOCEU staff prior to the individual's admission to the NF. The NF provides the LOCEU with written documentation concerning circumstances surrounding the need for respite care, the date the individual wishes to be admitted to the facility, and the date the individual is expected to return to the caregiver. Payment for NF

services will not be made after the respite care ending date.

(c) **PASRR Level II resident review.** The resident review is used primarily as a follow-up to the pre-admission assessment.

(1) The ~~nursing facility's~~ routine resident assessment will identify those individuals previously undiagnosed as intellectually disabled or ~~MI~~mentally ill. A new condition of intellectual disabilities or ~~MI~~mental illness must be referred to LOCEU by the NF for determination of the need for the Level II. The facility's failure to refer such individuals for a Level II assessment may result in recoupment of funds and/or penalties from CMS.

(2) A Level II resident review may be conducted the following year for each resident of a ~~nursing facility~~NF who was found to experience a serious mental illness with no primary diagnosis of dementia on his or her pre-admission Level II to determine whether, because of the resident's physical and mental condition, the resident requires specialized services.

(3) A Level II resident review may be conducted for each resident of a ~~nursing facility~~NF who has mental illness or an intellectual disability or other related condition when there is a significant change in the resident's mental condition. If such a change should occur in a resident's condition, it is the responsibility of the ~~nursing facility~~ to have a consultation with the LOCEU concerning the need to conduct a resident review.

(4) Individuals who were determined to have a serious mental illness (~~as defined by CMS~~) on their last PASRR Level II evaluation will receive a resident review at least within one year of the previous evaluation.

(d) **Results of pre-admission Level II assessment and Resident Review.** Through contractual arrangements between the ~~Oklahoma Health Care Authority~~OHCA and the ~~Mental Illness/Mental Retardation Authorities/Community Mental Health Centers~~Mental Illness/Intellectual Disabilities Authorities/ Community Mental Health Centers, individualized assessments are conducted and findings presented in written evaluative reports. The reports recommend if ~~nursing facility~~NF services are needed, if specialized services or less than specialized services are needed, and if the individual meets the federal PASRR definition of mental illness or intellectual disability or related conditions. Evaluative reports are delivered to the OHCA's LOCEU within federal regulatory and state contractual timelines to allow the LOCEU to process formal, written notification to ~~patient~~member, guardian, NF and significant others.

(e) **Evaluation of pre-admission Level II or Resident Review assessment to determine Medicaid medical eligibility for long**

**term care.** The determination of medical eligibility for care in a ~~nursing facility~~NF is made by the area nurse (or nurse designee) unless the individual has an intellectual disability or related condition or a serious mental illness ~~(as defined by CMS)~~. The procedures for obtaining and submitting information required for a decision are outlined in this subsection. When an active long term care ~~patient~~member enters the facility and nursing care is being requested:

- (1) The pre-admission screening process must be performed and must allow the ~~patient~~member to be admitted.
- (2) The facility will notify the local county office by the OKDHS Form 08MA083E, Notification Regarding Patient in a Nursing Facility, Intermediate Care Facility for the Mentally Retarded or Hospice and Form 08MA084E, Management of Recipient's Funds, of the member's admission.
- (3) The local county office will send the NF the OKDHS Form 08MA038E, Notice Regarding Financial Eligibility, indicating actions that are needed or have been taken regarding the member.